
Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 1

 

Board of Commissioners Present: 

Coppola, Lary, Mayor, City of Port Orchard, Vice-Chair 
Erickson, Becky, Mayor, City of Poulsbo 
Garrido, Charlotte, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Gelder, Robert, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Lent, Patty, Mayor, City of Bremerton 
Maupin, Will, Bremerton City Councilmember, Chair 

Putaansuu, Rob, At-Large Board member & Port Orchard City Councilmember 

Fuller, Mark for John Witte of Teamsters Local 589, non-voting member 

 

Board of Commissioners Absent: 

Brackett, Kim, Proxy for Mayor, City of Bainbridge Island 

Brown, Josh, Kitsap County Commissioner 
 
Staff Present: 

Cartwright, Jeff, Human Resources Director 
Clark-Getzin, Wendy, Capital Development Director 
Clauson, John, Service Development Director 
Dimmen, Jeff, Acting Vehicle & Facilities Maintenance Director 
Edwards, Phyllis, ACCESS Driver of the Month for July 
Freer, Jack, Routed Operations Manager 
Grund, Fred, Routed Driver of the Month for July 
Gustafson, Ellen, Operations Director 
Knox-Browning, Cathie, Clerk of the Board 
Lenee, Tammy, ACCESS Driver of the Month for June 
Lynn, Hans, Routed Driver of the Month for June 
Shinners, Paul, Finance Director 
Templeton, Ron, General Counsel 
Thomson, Gayle, Deputy Clerk 
 
Visitors Present: 

Downs, Sue, Interpreter for Mr. Roach 
Friedrich, Ed, Kitsap Sun 
Gray, Carol 
Sanders, Greg, ATU No. 1384 
Roach, Robert, KT Citizens' Advisory Committee 
Russell, Stuart 

KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2011 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 2

1.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chairperson Maupin called the regular meeting of the Kitsap Transit 
Board of Commissioners to order at 9:33 a.m.  

 

 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

Chairperson Maupin said the board would recess into Executive Session at 9:33 a.m. for 15 
minutes to discuss property and contract negotiations. The board exited the closed session at 9:48 
a.m., took a short break and resumed the open portion of the meeting at 9:50 a.m. 
 
Mr. Templeton left the meeting at this point: 9:50 a.m. 
 

 

3. CHAIRPERSON'S COMMENTS / DISCUSSION:  

 

a. Recognizing the 2011 Drivers of the Month for June & July in Routed and ACCESS 

 

Mr. Freer began by introducing the ACCESS Driver of the Month (DOM) for June, Tammy 
Lenee, who he said began working for Kitsap Transit (KT) in 1998, has been DOM six times and 
Driver of the Year in 2003.  He said she is known for her sunny disposition and her attitude to be 
all she can be every day.  Mr. Freer said that Ms. Lenee’s advice to other drivers is to treat every 
day as a good day and know that some days are just better than others. 
 
Applause followed these remarks. 
 
Ms. Lenee said she hoped the meeting attendees would have a good day, enjoy the rest of their 
summer and have a happy autumn. 
 
Chairperson Maupin offered his congratulations. 
 
Applause followed these remarks. 
 
Mr. Freer then introduced the July DOM in ACCESS; Fred Grund.  He said Mr. Grund enjoys 
kite-flying, biking and X-box video games, and that Mr. Grund’s goal is to pay off his house and 
retire.  Mr. Freer also said Mr. Grund’s advice to other drivers is to not back down, especially if 
it is an issue of safety. 
 
Applause followed these remarks. 
 
Mr. Grund noted he was about as keen on public speaking as Ms. Lenee was, and he bid the 
board a good day.  He then said he was going back to work. 
 
Laughter and applause followed these remarks. 
 
Mr. Freer noted that KT’s ACCESS drivers’ real skills come out one-on-one with their 
passengers.  
 
He then introduced the June DOM in Routed; Hans Lynn, who he noted began with KT as an 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 3

ACCESS driver four years ago.  Mr. Lynn, who has been married for 35 years, had the day off 
and was not in attendance, Mr. Freer said, and he asked for a round of applause for Mr. Lynn in 
absentia. 
 
The assemblage complied. 
 
Mr. Freer last introduced the Routed DOM for July; Phyllis Edwards, who he said began 
working for the agency in January of 2007.  This is Ms. Edward’s first DOM and her 
professional goal is to become a nurse, he said.  Mr. Freer said Ms. Edwards spends her free time 
reading and playing with her son.  He also said that Ms. Edward’s advice to other drivers is to 
listen to customers, other drivers and your supervisors. 
 
Applause followed these remarks. 
 
Ms. Edwards thanked the board for the honor and said “God bless.” 
 
Applause followed these remarks. 
 
Chairperson Maupin thanked all the Drivers of the Month. 
 
 

b. Board Sub-Committee reports:  
 

• Patty Lent, of the Planning SC, which met on Aug. 9 

As both the chair and vice-chair of this SC were not at the meeting, Commissioner Lent 
provided a report.  She said the highlights of the Planning SC meeting included an 
overview of the TDP, its capital priorities starting with Eastside and then Port Orchard 
and KT’s desire to work with all the cities in the county in advancements in current park- 
and-ride lot locations.  
 
Commissioner Lent said KT believes its first electric vehicles (EVs) will like operate on 
Bainbridge Island and that the agency will study more closely the use of alternative 
technologies.  She noted that the current thinking is that while EV and hybrid vehicles 
generally cost less, they often don’t last as long as the 12-15 years provided by diesel 
buses.   
 
Commissioner Lent noted KT has the funds for the minimum North Base and no plans to 
make changes at the park-and-ride lots at Mullenix and McWilliams. Also noted was the 
start of the Kariotis area survey of riders and non-riders, she said.   
 
Commissioner Lent said the SC also discussed the installation of Automatic Passenger 
Counters, why KT uses low-floor buses in some services and high-floor coaches in others 
and why the agency opts for certain manufacturers; ease of maintenance and price.  She 
also noted that the 28 new Worker/Driver (W/D) buses, which KT bought used and 
which have expanded the capacity of the W/D program, cost less than three brand-new 
transit buses.  Commissioner Lent said it was also noted KT can pay for diesel upgrades 
with EPA funds and that the PSRC has been helpful in the funding for that. 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 4

She said the SC also discussed the Poulsbo park-and-ride and the Greaves Way appraisal.   
 
 
• Becky Erickson, Chair of the Finance & Personnel SC, which met on Aug. 12 and 

Sept. 9 

Commissioner Erickson said most of work of this SC over the past two months involved 
review of the financial piece of the TDP, which also appeared in the materials for today’s 
meeting.  She said the SC also discussed the ORCA agreement slated for board 
consideration later in the agenda and the recruitment process for the agency’s next 
executive director, which she noted was proceeding along the projected timeline. 
 
 
• Rob Putaansuu, Chair of Passenger-Only Ferry SC, which met on Aug. 10 and Aug. 

19 
 
Commissioner Putaansuu noted that as board members heard in the Work-Study earlier 
that morning, this SC travelled to Bellingham and Anacortes on Aug. 19 to see the 
construction progress on the Rich Passage 1 (RP1) and on the foil.  And, as noted earlier, 
the prototype vessel is expected to be back in the water by the end of this month, he said.   
 
Commissioner Putaansuu also reported that this SC met Aug. 10 with officials of the 
King County Ferry District, which operates passenger ferries between downtown Seattle 
and two other locations; Alki in West Seattle and Vashon Island.  He said that meeting 
included discussion of short-term and long-term service goals and that once the RP1 is in 
the water, there is the possibility of a shared facility.  Commissioner Putaansuu also noted 
the this SC’s intent to be involved in the redevelopment of the downtown Seattle 
waterfront, specifically regarding a passenger-ferry dock. 
 
Chairperson Maupin asked if there were questions or comments on these reports?  There 
were none. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING: A public hearing was advertised on the agency's 2010-2016 Transit 
Development Plan (See Resolution 11-45 below)  

 

Chairperson Maupin asked staff to begin with a presentation. 
 
Mr. Clauson first noted that the agenda later includes consideration of the 2010-2016 Transit 
Development Plan (TDP), a state-required annual report that reviews the transit agency’ past 
year, current year and next five years.  He said the report describes the current composition of 
the agency in terms of staffing, physical facilities, equipment and other assets, it outlines the 
agency’s service system and expenses and KT’s income from fares, sales taxes and other 
sources.  Mr. Clauson said the TDP also projects capital spending into the future, as far as 2016, 
including the expected sources of funding through that year.  
 
Mr. Clauson noted that the TDP was discussed in some detail in the Work-Study earlier this 
morning and said the agency would be glad to hear any public comment. 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 5

 

Chairperson Maupin opened the public hearing at 10:01 a.m. and called for public 

comment on the plan and goal. Seeing none, he closed the public hearing at 10:01 a.m. 

 

 

5. CITIZENS' ADVISORY COMMITTEE ISSUES  

 
Mr. Clauson said the CAC reviewed the agendas for today’s meetings but that it did not forward 
any items to the board.   
 
He said the committee is sending letters to other transit CACs around the state to gauge interest 
in re-starting an annual gathering that had been cancelled the last few years due to budget 
constraints.  Mr. Clauson explained that CACs from around the state had, for a number of years, 
organized a one-day meeting and that the goal here is to include such a gathering in the budgets 
of CACs around the state, if there is sufficient interest. 
 
Commissioner Lent asked if that involved just the ORCA transit agencies or all transits in 
Washington.  
 
Mr. Clauson said the meeting was open to CACs across the state. 
 
Commissioner Lent said she would like to see such a meeting get re-started. 
 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT: Chairperson Maupin called for public comment.  There was none. 
 

 

7. CONSENT/ACTION ITEMS: 

   
 a. Approval of MINUTES of July 19, 2011 Board Meeting    

 

 b. Approval of KITSAP TRANSIT VOUCHERS for July & August, 2011  

 

 c. RESOLUTION 11-42 authorizing Kitsap Transit staff to renew property and liability 

insurance policies for the Kitsap Transit-owned passenger only ferry vessels and 

facilities     

 

 d. RESOLUTION 11-43 authorizing the cancellation of outstanding warrants in accordance 

with RCW 39.56.040 

 

 e. RESOLUTION 11-44 authorizing Kitsap Transit staff to seek bids for sewer hook-up at 

the North Base in Poulsbo  

 

Commissioner Lent moved to approve the consent agenda and Commissioner Coppola 

seconded the motion.    

 
Chairperson Maupin called for discussion of the items on the consent agenda.  There was none.   
 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 6

He called for those in favor of the motion.  All voted yes. Chairperson Maupin called for 

those opposed to the motion.  There were none.  Chairperson Maupin called for 

abstentions. There were none. 

 

Chairperson Maupin noted the executive session indicated on the agenda at this point had already 
occurred. 
  
 
8. DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEM: 
 

a. RESOLUTION 11-45 authorizing Kitsap Transit staff to adopt the 2010-2016 Transit 

Development Plan     

 
Chairperson Maupin noted that the board has discussed this previously, not only earlier today, 
but in sub-committee meetings over the summer. 
 

Commissioner Gelder moved to approve Resolution 11-45 and Commissioner Erickson 

seconded the motion.  Chairperson Maupin called for those in favor of the motion.  All 

voted yes. Chairperson Maupin called for those opposed to the motion.  There were none.  

Chairperson Maupin called for abstentions. There were none. 

 
   
b.  RESOLUTION 11-46 approving Kitsap Transit’s sponsorship of the Port of Kingston into 

the regional smartcard ORCA system and authorizing Kitsap Transit to enter into an 

Affiliate Agreement between the ORCA Joint Board and the Port of Kingston for inclusion 

of the port’s SoundRunner passenger ferry service in the ORCA program   
 
Mr. Clauson said this agreement, on behalf of the Port of Kingston and its SoundRunner 
passenger-ferry service, has been under development for some time.  He said SoundRunner 
expressed interest in becoming a participant in the ORCA fare collection system and he said he 
will be happy to note this Kitsap County entity will be the first new participant, if this agreement 
is approved by the seven transit systems that comprise ORCA.   
 
Mr. Clauson said the development of the regional program has delayed any participation, beyond 
the initial seven systems, as that group wanted to avoid contractor scope creep; charging more 
for additions.  He said the ORCA system has now been up and running for a year and thus is 
ready to accept additional partners.  Mr. Clauson said there have been two approaches to adding 
partners; a full buy-in option and affiliate membership.  He said the former is quite expensive but 
gives new partners a full vote on the Joint Board, the governing body for ORCA.  Mr. Clauson 
said what KT is proposing today is that the Port of Kingston’s SoundRunner service join the 
ORCA system as an affiliate member.  That requires that one of original seven agencies sponsor 
such an affiliate membership and that is what KT has done to date.  Mr. Clauson said the 
Affiliate Agreement board members have today between KT and the Port of Kingston identifies 
all costs associated with ORCA membership and also outlines parties’ responsibilities.  He said 
the port has agreed to all affiliate membership expenses, up to and including between $65,000 
and$80,000 worth of modifications to the underlying software to allow ORCA to accept 
SoundRunner service and collect their fares. 
 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 7

Mr. Clauson said KT’s financial responsibility includes accepting SoundRunner fares and re-
distributing those monies back to the port.  He said the projected cost to accomplish that includes 
the port purchasing some equipment which KT will maintain and own, and the port paying for 
KT staff time to support the operations.  Mr. Clauson said the port and the ORCA Joint Board 
have both approved this agreement and this affiliate opportunity.  He said that if the Transit 
Board approves this today, this system will be in operation by October. 
 
Commissioner Putaansuu moved to approve Resolution 11-46 and Commissioner Gelder 

seconded the motion.  

 

Chairperson Maupin called for discussion. 
 
Commissioner Erickson said she believes this is a really important step for the SoundRunner and 
KT working in cooperation.  She said she supports this first step in the important efforts to 
stabilize revenue flow for the SoundRunner.  Commissioner Erickson said she also wanted to 
thank Mr. Clauson said and others involved in this agreement, which she said she heartily 
supports. 
 
Commissioner Gelder said he also wanted to thank Mr. Clauson and KT staff in moving this 
forward.  He said that having worked with officials from the port and SoundRunner over the past 
several months, he is aware of their struggles in having to pay for this work, as the estimates kept 
changing.  Commissioner Gelder said those officials stepped up as they believed this is part of 
the long-term viability of the service between Kingston and Seattle and he said he also applauds 
KT for its help in opening this door and insuring this tool is available to the port as it develops its 
long-term, sustainable business plan. 
 
Commissioner Garrido said this is also a way that shows the ORCA program is region-wide and 
how KT is joining a more systematic look at transit participation and transit across the region. 
 
Commissioner Lent said it is her understanding that the software that supports the ORCA card 
not only keeps track of the number of passengers and the type of trips people are taking, but also 
can supply participants with a wealth of knowledge for transit planning and funding. 
 

Chairperson Maupin called for those in favor of the motion.  All voted yes. Chairperson 

Maupin called for those opposed to the motion.  There were none.  Chairperson Maupin 

called for abstentions. There were none. 

 
At this point, a new resolution was introduced [attached at the end of these minutes]. 
 
 

c. RESOLUTION 11-47 authorizing Kitsap Transit staff to purchase an approximately five-

acre parcel of land from Viking Way Industrial Park, LLC for a price not to exceed eight-

hundred and forty-nine thousand, five hundred dollars, together with related transaction 

costs, for the development of a park-and-ride lot and transfer center 

  

Commissioner Gelder moved to approve Resolution 11-47 and Commissioner Erickson 

seconded the motion.  

 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 8

Commissioner Putaansuu said that while he has no financial interest in this matter, he does have 
a business relationship with the seller through his job with Columbia Bank, and he said that 
because of that he would recuse himself from this discussion and the vote. 
 
Commissioner Coppola said he would also recuse himself from this matter as he has a financial 
business relationship with the agent representing the seller. 
 
Chairperson Maupin asked for a staff report. 
 
Mr. Clauson said Ms. Clark-Getzin has that information. 
 
Ms. Clark-Getzin said the agency has been conducting and 18-month feasibility site impact 
review for the federal government and responding to requirements in the National Environmental 
Protection Act, which involved a very lengthy checklist.  She said the KT has also conducted a 
number of other state and tribal approval processes to determine whether this site is feasible for a 
park-and-ride lot.  Ms. Clark-Getzin said the agency recently received confirmation from the 
Federal Transit Administration that KT had reached the point where it could appraise the 
property, and she said that was done in August and September.  She said appraiser Gary Lyman 
of Richard & Associates expeditiously provided a very lengthy summary report, which then, 
following the federal uniform acquisition act, was reviewed by another appraiser, a former 
WSDOT real estate appraiser now living in Bremerton.  Ms. Clark-Getzin said the appraisal 
report and appraisal review were consistent and that KT is now ready to approve this purchase 
and sale agreement as the next step of the agency’s acquisition. 
 
Commissioner Gelder said this has been a long time coming and that, the resources and the 
assets KT has to manage transit needs in north end, especially in the Poulsbo area, are somewhat 
scattered.  He said what is really exciting about this park-and-ride facility is that it will pull all 
those together to make north end transit a more efficient, long-term operation.  Commissioner 
Gelder said this is the right direction to move 
 
Commissioner Erickson said she absolutely agreed, and she noted the prime location of this site 
next to both State Routes 3 and 305.  She said this will basically function for Poulsbo but also for 
good portions of north end.  Commissioner Erickson said the site is also right next to the North 
Base yard, making for a real hub of transit that can work effectively and efficiently for the 
citizens.  She said it is absolutely imperative this move forward and she thanked the staff. 
 
Chairperson Maupin called for those in favor of the motion.  Five voted yes. Chairperson 

Maupin called for those opposed to the motion.  There were none.  Chairperson Maupin 

called for abstentions. There were two: Commissioners Coppola and Putaansuu. 

 

 

8. PROGRESS REPORTS:    

 

a. Draft Financial Reports for June & July, 2011      
b. Monthly Cash Flow and Cash Position charts through July  
c. Ridership Reports for June & July, 2011  
d. Fuel Costs Report through the end of August, 2011  



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 9

 
Mr. Clauson said these stand as read, and he noted that while the ridership reports continue to 
show a slight decline, the Automatic Passenger Counters are now being installed.  He said riders 
already can go on-line to see some buses on routes with automatic vehicle locating technology, 
moving around.  Mr. Clauson said the agency has also developed ways to identify trips on each 
bus to associate counts with specific routes. Soon the ridership reports will be coming directly 
from that system, he said. 
 
Mr. Clauson also noted that while fuel costs continue to rise, some other lower-than-anticipated 
expenses have helped to offset that.  He said fuel costs continue to be closely monitored. 
 
Commissioner Lent asked whether the over-allotment of fuel funding, during the years when 
KT’s actual costs for fuel are less than what is budgeted, goes into a reserve? 
 
Mr. Clauson said any monies left in KT’s fuel budget revert to the agency’s general fund and are 
reprogrammed.  He said KT maintains a bare-bones reserve. Between the slightly better-than-
anticipated sales tax receipts and some reduced expense, the agency is holding its own, Mr. 
Clauson said. 
 
 
9.  STAFF INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS:     
 

a. Report on Kariotis Flex Route project  
b. August report from state lobbyists  
c. Regional POF  

Mr. Clauson asked for questions. There were none. 

Chairperson Maupin called for other information from the staff.  There was none. 

 
10. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER: Transit Board members’ issues/comments        
 
Commissioner Garrido said she wanted to report about the Connecting Washington Task Force.  
She said the group will meet five times to make recommendations for transportation funding to 
the 2012 Legislature.  She said the task force has meet twice and will meet again in October.  
The first meeting featured presentations from cities, counties, ports and WSDOT about the state 
of transportation, and each presenter included both their budget woes as well as ideas about how 
the state might address shortfalls in revenue.  Commissioner Garrido said the second meeting 
continued with presentations from the tribes and transit and then a lengthy discussion about the 
principles upon which the task force would base any recommendations.   She said that discussion 
is ongoing.  Commissioner Garrido said there were several outspoken interest groups that talked 
about jobs and economic development and she said that discussion will also continue next 
month. 
 
Mr. Clauson said he wanted to thank the board members who attended the Worker/Driver (W/D) 
kick-off event the day before at the shipyard.  He said it was a success.  He said what was 
unexpected was how impressed the W/D operators were with the show of support from board 



Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011-APPROVED 

 10

members and U.S. and Rep. Norm Dicks (D-Belfair). 
 
Chairperson Maupin said it was a great event.  He said that the W/D operators and riders must be 
in heaven now, after operating for so many years with hand-me-down equipment that was 
bottom-of-the barrel in terms of the KT fleet, and now having the best equipment in the fleet.  
Chairperson Maupin said he was really impressed that KT was able to purchase the buses he saw 
yesterday for less than $50,000 each. 
 
Commissioner Lent said the exterior graphic art which includes the crane, the icon of the 
shipyard, really highlights the partnership between KT and the Navy. 
 
 
11. ADJOURN:  Chairperson Maupin adjourned the meeting at 10:21 a.m. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting thereof, held 
on the 18th of October, 2011. 
 
  

 
 
 

  Will Maupin, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   

Cathie Knox-Browning 
Clerk of the Board 

  

 
 
 



KITSAP TRANSIT 
RESOLUTION SUMMARY 

 

 

TITLE: 
 

Resolution authorizing Kitsap Transit to 
purchase an approximately five-acre 
parcel of land from Viking Way Industrial 
Park, LLC for a price not to exceed eight-
hundred and forty-nine thousand, five 
hundred dollars, together with related 
transaction costs, for the development of a 
park-and-ride lot and transfer center. 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  11-47 

 

AGENDA OF: 09/20/11 
 

 

EXHIBITS: 
 
 Exhibits A and B are attached. 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Wendy Clark-Getzin, PE 
Capital Director 
 

DATE:   09/19/11 
 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ORIGIN: 
 
Capital  

DEPARTMENT(S)  

IMPACTED: All 

 

BUDGETED AT:  $877,771 
 

 

CAPITAL   X_   OPERATING ___ 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   Up to $849,500, plus closing and other costs from federal 
Surface Transportation Program Flex funds with match from toll credits.  
 

REVIEWED BY 
 Ron Templeton, General Counsel 

RECOMMENDED 

Date: 09/19/11 
COMMENTS 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This resolution provides Kitsap Transit staff with the authority to purchase property for the 
development of a park-and-ride lot and transfer center adjacent to its North Base operating base. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Motion to Adopt Resolution 

 

ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
11



 

Resolution 11-47 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING KITSAP TRANSIT TO PURCHASE AN 
APPROXIMATELY FIVE-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND FROM VIKING WAY INDUSTRIAL 
PARK, LLC FOR A PRICE NOT TO EXCEED EIGHT-HUNDRED AND FORTY-NINE 
THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS, TOGETHER WITH RELATED TRANSACTION 
COSTS, FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A PARK-AND-RIDE LOT AND TRANSFER 
CENTER 
 

RESOLUTION 11-47 

 
WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit needs to acquire land to develop a park-and-ride lot 

and transfer facility in or near Poulsbo, Washington in close proximity to State Route 3 and State 

Route 305, and; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 03-59, Kitsap Transit previously acquired a 

four and two-tenths (4.2) acre parcel (the "Waite Property") to develop a north end bus fueling, 

wash down and parking facility (the "North Base Facility") on Viking Way in Poulsbo, and; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 06-11, Kitsap Transit purchased a second 

parcel adjacent to and south of the North Base Facility (the "Lasser Property") to expand the 

North Base Facility, and; 

WHEREAS, Viking Way Industrial Property, LLC owns a four and ninety-seven 

hundredths (4.97)-acre parcel (the "Subject Property") on Viking Way that abuts the Lasser 

Property, as illustrated in the drawing attached and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit 

A, and;  

WHEREAS, the subject property is readily accessible to both State Route 3 and 

State Route 305 and abuts a large mixed use development that the City of Poulsbo has approved 

on properties south and southeast of the subject property, and; 

WHEREAS, the subject property is not only suitable for the development of a 

transfer center and park-n-ride lot, it will better enhance and facilitate the next phase of the North 

Base Facility by providing better options for the potential road vacation and replacement of 

Northwest Vetter Road, thereby optimizing the amount of available usable land for both projects, 

and; 

WHEREAS, the seller is willing to sell the subject property pursuant to the terms 

of a Purchase and Sale Agreement, attached and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit B, 

so long as closing occurs on or before October 14, 2011, and; 

ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
12



 

Resolution 11-47 

WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit's staff believes the acquisition of the subject property 

will advance the public interest (i) by enhancing the proposed North Base Facility expansion and 

improvements; (ii) by enabling Kitsap Transit to develop an ideally located transfer center 

facility and park-and-ride lot; and (iii) by avoiding the expense and uncertainty of a 

condemnation. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 

Kitsap Transit that Kitsap Transit is authorized to acquire the property described in the Purchase 

and Sale Agreement attached as Exhibit B on the terms in substantial conformance with those set 

forth therein, and it is further 

RESOLVED, that Kitsap Transit's Executive Director and/or his delegee is 

authorized to sign the said Purchase and Sale Agreement  and all other instruments necessary or 

desirable to complete the purchase of said property on terms in substantial conformance with the 

terms set forth in the said Purchase and Sale Agreement. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting 

thereof, held on the September 20, 2011. 

 
   

  Will Maupin, Chairperson 
ATTEST:   
   
   

Cathie Knox-Browning 
Clerk of the Board 

  

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
13



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
14



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
15



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
16



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
17



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
18



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
19



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
20



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
21



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
22



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
23



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
24



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
25



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
26



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
27



ATTACHMENT TO THE: Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners Meeting: Minutes of Sept. 20, 2011--APPROVED
28


	Sept. 20, 2011 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Att 1 to 092011 Board meeting minutes.pdf
	11-47 Buying Viking LLC property.pdf
	11-47 Exh A, map of property.pdf
	11-47 Exh B Purchase & Sale Agreement.pdf


